
LEP - Transport for Lancashire Committee

Wednesday, 28th March, 2018 in Committee Room 'D' (The Henry 
Bolingbroke Room) - County Hall, Preston, at 2.00 pm

Agenda

Part I (Items Publicly Available)

1. Welcome and Apologies for Absence  

2. Declarations of Interest  

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2018  (Pages 1 - 6)
The Committee are asked to agree that the Minutes of the last meeting held 
on 10 January 2018 be confirmed and signed by the Chair.

4. Matters Arising  

5. Transport for the North Draft Strategic Transport Plan Public 
Consultation  (Pages 7 - 16)

6. Any Other Business  

7. Date of Next Meeting  
The next meeting of the Transport for Lancashire Committee will be held on 
Tuesday 5 June 2018 at 2pm in Committee Room D – The Henry Bolingbroke 
Room, County Hall, Preston. 





LEP - Transport for Lancashire Committee

Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 10th January, 2018 at 2.00 
pm at the Committee Room 'D' (The Henry Bolingbroke Room) - County 
Hall, Preston

Present

                      County Councillor Michael Green (Chair)

Graham Cowley Councillor Fred Jackson
Councillor Phil Riley

Also In Attendance

Joanne Ainsworth, Finance Manager, LEP & Special Projects, LCC
Mike Cliffe, Strategic Transport Manager, Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council
Dave Colbert, Specialist Advisor - Transportation, Lancashire County Council 
Kathryn Molloy, Head of Service LEP Coordination, Lancashire County Council
Bruce Parker, Highways England
Richard Perry, Department for Transport
Jeremy Walker, Transport Policy Manager, Blackpool Council
Cath Rawcliffe, Democratic Services, Lancashire County Council

1.  Welcome and Apologies for Absence

County Councillor Michael Green welcomed everyone to the meeting and noted 
that apologies had been received from Sam Whelan, Network Rail, Alan Cavill, 
Blackpool Council and Brian Bailey, Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council.

2.  Declarations of Interest

None declared.

3.  Minutes of the meeting held on 20th November 2017

That the Minutes of the last meeting held on the 20 November 2017 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair. 

4.  Matters Arising

There were no matters arising from the Minutes.

5.  Transport for Lancashire - Proposed Amendments to the LEP Assurance 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Framework

Kathryn Molloy, Head of Service LEP Coordination, presented a report on 
proposed amendments to the LEP Transport for Lancashire Committee's Terms 
of Reference and in particular the Accountability Framework for Transport 
schemes set out at Appendix A to the report.

The Committee was advised that the current Terms of Reference, part of the 
LEP's Assurance Framework, do not allow the LEP to fund scheme development 
and preparation costs nor any post scheme monitoring and evaluation.  It was felt 
that this was inconsistent with the other two themes of the Growth Deal 
programme covering skills and economic projects, where scheme preparation 
costs are permissible as part of the local contribution.

It was therefore proposed to amend the Terms of Reference to allow scheme 
sponsors to use a proportion of Growth Deal funding to support scheme 
preparation and development.  It was further proposed that the minimum 10% 
local contribution that scheme sponsors are required to provide would also 
include scheme preparation and development costs in addition to capital costs 
as currently approved. 

It was noted that the proposed changes in respect of transport schemes would 
bring the management and delivery of the Growth Deal programme and scheme 
delivery into alignment.  Local contributions would continue to be considered on 
a scheme by scheme basis to ensure that value for money is achieved.

The Committee was advised that if they were minded to approve the proposed 
changes, these would be reflected in the LEP's Assurance Framework which is 
currently being reviewed and updated by officers. It was noted that named 
officers would be removed from the document as part of the review. It was 
proposed to present the revised Assurance Framework to the LEP Board on 30 
January for consideration and approval.  

Resolved: That:

(i)     The proposed changes to the Committee's Terms of Reference in 
respect of the Accountability Framework for Transport schemes as set 
out at Appendix A be approved; and

(ii)    The proposed changes be included with the LEP's Assurance 
Framework to be presented to the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership 
Board on 30 January 2018 for consideration and approval.

6.  Preston Western Distributor Conditional Approval Application

Dave Colbert, LCC Specialist Advisor Transportation and Hossein Fars from the 
consultants Atkins presented a report on the Outline Business Case submission 
by Lancashire County Council for the Preston Western Distributor scheme, which 
is seeking Conditional Approval.

Page 2



 
The Committee was informed that the Scheme comprises a new 4.3km dual 
carriageway road connecting the A583 Preston to Blackpool road at Lea with the 
M55 at a new Junction 2 near Bartle.  This is the largest transport project in the 
Lancashire Growth Deal programme and key to unlocking the North West 
Preston strategic housing location (circa 5,000 new homes).  

The scheme is predicted to deliver high value for money with a benefit to cost 
ratio of 2.29 and has the potential to generate an additional £144m of GVA for the 
local economy over the 60 year evaluation period, principally through unlocked 
development.  Over 5,000 new homes are dependent on or unlocked by the 
Preston Western Distributor. 

Having undertaken an independent assessment of the Outline Business Case on 
behalf of the LEP, the consultants, Atkins, advised that they were satisfied that 
the project has been developed to the expected standard in most areas and 
recommended that Conditional Approval be granted to enable the scheme to 
progress to a Full Business Case submission. It was reported orally that DfT 
guidance has changed since Atkins completed their report and that the impact of 
the new guidance on the BCR will need to be established.

It was reported that the current projected outturn capital cost of the Preston 
Western Distributor as set out in the Outline Business Case is expected to be 
£161.6m; this is somewhat higher than the £104.5m reported at Programme 
Entry.  It was explained that the Programme Entry estimate was based on the 
best information available at the time and in advance of any site investigation or 
design work.  It was also at 2013 Quarter 2 prices and excluded any adjustment 
for inflation.  The scheme includes the construction of two major viaducts and 
additional costs for the diversion of the Hodder Aqueduct (crossed twice). 

It was noted that regardless of the increased cost, the scheme has a BCR of over 
2 and there are significant wider economic benefits to be taken into account.  
Providing the scheme is approved, there are 2 years to the end of the Growth 
Deal programme remaining and it was felt that any issues along the way could be 
comfortably addressed within this timescale. That said, it was noted that the 
timing of the Compulsory Purchase Order process is determined by the Secretary 
of State and therefore not within the County Council's control

Following debate on the cost of the project and the importance of the scheme to 
the economic growth of the region and dependent housing delivery it was:

Resolved: That:

i)         The Outline Business Case report as set out at Appendix A to 
the report be noted.

ii) The Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Board be 
recommended to grant the scheme Conditional Approval at 
their meeting on 30 January 2018.

Page 3



7.  Preston Railway Station

A report was presented on proposals to transform Preston Railway Station in 
order to create a high quality, contemporary transport hub. 

It was reported that the station’s development was of fundamental importance as 
a driver of economic growth aspirations across Lancashire serving as a gateway 
for an extensive catchment of communities further afield, particularly for 
connectivity with the West Coast Main Line and, in the future, to HS2.  

The Committee noted that various improvements would be required to the fabric 
of the station to ensure Preston Railway station could be considered as a HS2 
hub. These improvements would include an increase in the height and length of 
platforms to accommodate high speed trains and structural changes to ensure 
the Station was able to accommodate a significant increase in the number of 
people using its services, including improvements to DDA facilities.

The Committee was informed that the LEP and its partners would need to 
develop and maintain close working relationships with a range of organisations to 
ensure that transformation of Preston Station progresses.  Positioning station 
transformation at the core of Lancashire's local response to the Government's 
recently published Industrial Strategy would be essential in influencing future 
national rail investment priorities.  Further work was therefore necessary to fully 
understand and quantify the wider economic growth and productivity benefits that 
the station's transformation could deliver.  Specialist consultants would need to 
be engaged to undertake this work, which would include forecasts of future 
passenger demand. It was hoped that this work would also help inform the 
Preston City Transport Plan.

Officers responded to questions raised with regard to the wider economic benefits 
of the scheme in terms of potential development for Preston and the wider region. 
It was felt that a strong evidence based case could be made for Preston Station 
to become a HS2 hub.  This would be taken forward with the help of Network 
Rail.

Richard Perry, Department of Transport (DfT), addressed the Committee and 
advised that the government would have to consider several issues/ elements 
when determining the evidence based case including:

 The redesign of the station;
 The burgeoning growth in rail; 
 The focus on growth and wider connectivity; 
 The accessibility of the station; 
 The wider benefits not only to Preston but to the wider region; and most 

importantly how this would be paid for.

He also felt that the LEP Board should look at a comprehensive package and 
undertake a wider Lancashire based review to include Blackpool and Blackburn 
with Darwen and the east-west corridor. It was felt that this would fit in well with 
the work Transport for the North was undertaking.

Page 4



Following further discussion, it was felt that the LEP Board should be 
recommended to accept the DfT advice detailed above. 

Resolved: That the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Board be recommended 
to:

(i)   Accept the DfT advice as detailed above;

(ii)   Support the commissioning of a study to examine and quantify the      
wider economic growth and productivity benefits that the transformation    
of Preston Station  could deliver;

(iii)   Fund the study from its strategic case-making budget.

8.  Department for Transport Consultation: Shaping the Future of England's 
Strategic Roads

Dave Colbert accompanied by Kathryn Molloy, presented a report on Highways 
England's Strategic Road Network Initial Report entitled 'Shaping the Future of 
England's Strategic Roads'.  

The Committee was informed that the Department for Transport is consulting 
stakeholders on the report and the process through which it would determine 
whether the Initial Report was sufficiently robust.  

Highways England's Initial SRN Report comprises an informative statement of its 
priorities (safety, customer service and delivery) and the progress made to date.  
It is proposed that investment in the SRN over the next 20 years should focus on 
achieving consistency around four categories of road:

 Smart motorways (routes with the highest demand, evolving with 
technology);

 Conventional motorways (in their current form);
 Expressways (a new concept for the busiest 'A' class roads in the 

SRN, with better design, technology and on-road response and 
alternative roads for non-motorised users and slow vehicles);

 All-purpose trunk roads (the remaining 'A' class roads in the SRN.

The Committee was advised that as part of the consultation, the DfT is seeking 
views on the proposed four categories and the development of Expressways.  
There are ten consultation questions in all.  It was felt that the questions that 
would be of particular interest to the Lancashire Enterprise Board (LEP) relate to 
the current size of the SRN, specifically whether there are local roads that the 
DfT should consider including in the SRN and conversely, whether there are 
roads in the SRN that should be removed.  It was felt that responses to these 
particular questions would be best prepared alongside any response to a 
complementary consultation on proposals to establish a Major Road Network.

It was therefore suggested that the LEP Board may wish to submit its own 
response to the SRN and MRN consultations.  It was agreed that the County 

Page 5



Council's response to the SRN consultation, which is to be considered at the 
Council's Cabinet meeting on 1 February 2018, should form the basis of such a 
response. 

Resolved: That the report be noted 

9.  Reporting to Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Board

Resolved: That the recommendations to the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership 
Board as set out in the resolutions to Items 5, 6 & 7 be noted.

10.  Any Other Business

None.

11.  Date of Next Meeting

It was noted that the next meeting would be held on Wednesday 4 April 2018. 
However, the meeting has since been brought forward to Wednesday 28 March 
at 2pm in Committee Room 'D', County Hall, Preston.

Page 6



LEP – Sub Committee

LEP - Transport for Lancashire Committee

Private and Confidential: No

Wednesday, 28 March 2018

Transport for the North Draft Strategic Transport Plan Public Consultation

Report Author: Dave Colbert, Tel: 01772 534501, Specialist Advisor Transport Planning
dave.colbert@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Transport for the North is consulting on a draft Strategic Transport Plan (STP) for the 
North of England.  Lancashire County Council, Blackburn with Darwen Council and 
Blackpool Council will each be submitting their own responses.  This report identifies 
three key strategic concerns that the Transport for Lancashire committee may wish to 
raise with TfN independently on behalf of the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership.  
These relate to proposals for the development and delivery of Northern Powerhouse 
Rail / Long Term Rail Strategy, the Major Road Network and Strategic Development 
Corridor priorities.  The report also identifies those long-term strategic transport 
requirements set out in the Lancashire Strategic Transport Prospectus that are 
relevant to the Strategic Development Corridors that the committee may wish to draw 
to TfN's attention.

Recommendation

The Committee is asked to consider the three key strategic concerns set out in this 
report as the basis for an independent submission by the Lancashire Enterprise 
Partnership.

Background and Advice 

Transport for the North (TfN) is a partnership of civic and business leaders from across 
the North that will become the first statutory Sub-National Transport Body in England 
from April 2018.  Its principal role will be to act as a statutory advisor to the Secretary 
of State for Transport, with responsibility for setting the objectives and priorities for 
strategic road and rail in the TfN area.  To that end and working with the Department 
for Transport, Highways England, Network Rail, High Speed 2 (HS2) Ltd and partner 
transport authorities, TfN has prepared a Strategic Transport Plan (STP) for the North 
of England that sets out the future requirements for its strategic transport networks.  
The STP will be a statutory document that will inform future Government investment 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



decisions; TfN is now consulting formally on a draft of that plan.  The deadline for 
receipt of responses is 17th April 2018.

Lancashire County Council, Blackburn with Darwen Council and Blackpool Council will 
each be submitting their own responses.  This report identifies three key strategic 
concerns that the Transport for Lancashire committee may wish to raise with TfN 
independently on behalf of the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership.  These relate to 
proposals for the development and delivery of Northern Powerhouse Rail / Long Term 
Rail Strategy, the Major Road Network and Strategic Development Corridor priorities.

The focus of the draft STP is unashamedly economic, with significant long-term 
investment in transport infrastructure seen as essential to support transformational 
growth across the North.  The North is currently underachieving, with the economic 
value per person 25% below the England average and income per person £7,500 less.  
In addition to issues such as a lack of highly skilled opportunities and lower levels of 
enterprise, poor transport links and under investment in transport are key factors 
contributing towards these gaps.

The Northern Powerhouse Independent Economic Review identified four economic 
strengths in which the North is globally competitive, with each strength strongly 
represented in Lancashire.  These are:

 Advanced manufacturing;
 Digital;
 Energy; and
 Health innovation.

Promoting, growing and connecting these four "prime capabilities" is expected to 
deliver higher productivity.  The four prime capabilities are supported by three 
"enabling capabilities" - education (particularly higher education), financial and 
professional services and logistics.

TfN sees its role in supporting economic growth as:

 Connecting people – by creating faster, more reliable transport connections to 
improve job opportunities, provide access to leisure activities and support 
tourism;

 Connecting businesses – supporting commerce by improving national and 
international connections in, out and across the North; and

 Moving goods – by improving links across the North and to ports and airports to 
enable freight and goods to move more efficiently.

By 2050, with a transformed economy the North could achieve a near £100bn increase 
in Gross Value Added and create 850,000 additional jobs.  To identify the transport 
infrastructure improvements necessary to deliver this ambition, TfN is currently 
undertaking a considerable amount of analytical work to understand where future 
growth is likely to occur and its likely impacts on roads, the rail network, ports and 
airports.

Page 8



To this end, the draft STP focuses on four key programmes that could amount to 
investment of £60-£70 billion over the period from 2020 to 2050:

 Northern Powerhouse Rail (NPR) – rapid, reliable and resilient rail links 
between six of the North's largest cities (Hull, Leeds, Liverpool, Manchester, 
Newcastle and Sheffield) and between those cities and Manchester Airport;

 Long Term Rail Strategy (LTRS) – a framework for the ongoing development 
of the North's existing railway into a single cohesive network through investment 
in lines, stations, services and future franchises to deliver across its five key 
themes of connectivity, capacity, the customer, supporting communities and cost 
effectiveness;

 Major Road Network – strengthening the road links across the North that are 
vital for economic growth;

 Integrated and Smart Travel – to bring forward a new era of simple and 
seamless public transport journeys across the North.

Whilst acknowledging the rationale for Northern Powerhouse Rail as set out in the 
draft STP, the committee may wish to raise concerns about inference and 
presentation.  Enhancing rail connectivity between the North's largest cities will not be 
a game changer in its own right.  NPR should be more properly set within the wider 
context of the LTRS, of which it should be part, to avoid interpretation as a 'solution 
chasing a problem'.  The premise for NPR should therefore flow from the analysis 
underpinning the LTRS as well as the Independent Economic Review.  This collective 
evidence base needs to demonstrate that the North cannot achieve transformational 
economic growth simply through upgrading existing rail infrastructure and services 
alone.

The Major Road Network set out in the consultation draft is significantly larger than 
the indicative MRN included in the recent Department for Transport consultation 
setting out its proposals to create a Major Road Network.  Clearly, there will need to 
be a consolidation of views going forward, as it will be self-defeating to have two MRNs 
defined in the North.

In addition, TfN has identified seven Strategic Development Corridors (SDCs) 
across the North where TfN will focus on improving transport infrastructure.  These 
corridors link important prime capability assets and important economic centres that 
are currently in need of improved connectivity; four are relevant to Lancashire.  TfN 
considers investment in the SDCs as critical to achieving the North's collective 
ambitions, hence their importance:

 Central Pennines – a multi-modal Trans-Pennine corridor linking Lancashire 
with North Yorkshire and the Leeds City Region;

 Connecting the Energy Coasts – a multi-modal Trans-Pennine corridor linking 
some of the UK's most important energy assets on both the East and West 
Coasts and covering Lancaster and the Fylde Coast;

 West and Wales – a multi-modal corridor extending west from Manchester to 
North Wales and covering the M58 Corridor in West Lancashire;

Page 9



 North West to Sheffield City Region – a rail focused corridor linking advanced 
manufacturing centres in Cumbria and Lancashire with those in Greater 
Manchester and the Sheffield City Region.

The Central Pennines, Connecting the Energy Coasts and West and Wales studies 
are currently underway and due to be completed by the autumn to inform the final 
Strategic Transport Plan, which TfN will publish later this year.  However, there is 
currently no timescale for commissioning the North West to Sheffield City Region SDC 
study.  Given the implied absolute priority given to developing NPR throughout the 
STP, the Committee may wish to see TfN progress the North West to Sheffield City 
Region SDC immediately and set it alongside the ongoing NPR work.  The North West 
to Sheffield City Region SDC is of strategic importance to Lancashire given ongoing 
joint work with the Sheffield City Region to develop the Northern Powerhouse 
Advanced Manufacturing Corridor that anticipated this SDC coming forward.  As 
Members will be aware, this joint working has enabled key initiatives such as the 
Advanced Manufacturing Research Centre (AMRC) North West on the Samlesbury 
Aerospace Enterprise Zone.

In its current form, NPR will be of little benefit to communities along the West Coast 
Main Line, including the key growth centres of Preston and Lancaster.  The diagram 
on Page 45 of the draft STP only serves to reinforce that sense of separation and a 
perception that these places add little economic value.  With an estimated 5 million 
passenger trips annually and a further 1.49 million interchanges, Preston Station is 
one of the busiest in the North of England.  It lies at the heart of the geographic area 
covered by the Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal, one of the most 
significant growth agendas in the North that will create over 20,000 net new private 
sector jobs and deliver 17,000 new homes by 2025, increasing the size of the local 
economy by £1bn.

In future, Preston station will serve as the access point for HS2 services for a large 
catchment with a population of over 1.4m people extending across much of Lancashire 
and South Cumbria and including Barrow, Blackburn, Blackpool, Burnley, Kendal, 
Lancaster and Windermere.  Its transformation into a modern 21st century facility is a 
key priority for both the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership and Lancashire County 
Council.

Following this consultation, TfN will update the draft STP in light of responses 
received.  It will be for TfN acting as the statutory Sub-national Transport Body for the 
North to approve and sign-off the final STP.  As voting members of TfN, the County 
Council along with Blackburn with Darwen and Blackpool Councils will have the 
opportunity to participate in that process.

The committee may wish to draw TfN's attention to the following long-term strategic 
transport requirements of the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership as set out in the 
Lancashire Strategic Transport Prospectus, December 2016.

Page 10



Central Pennines Strategic Development Corridor

East-west connectivity by road between East Lancashire, North Yorkshire and the 
Leeds City Region is currently restricted to single carriageway roads that tend to follow 
historic routes dictated by topography; most are poorly aligned and unsuitable for 
carrying large volumes of traffic, particularly heavy goods vehicles.  Main line rail links 
are likewise constrained, with low line speeds, ageing infrastructure and limited 
capacity having a significant impact on journey times and reliability.  Both are of a 
much lower quality than those further to the south that link Liverpool and Manchester 
with Leeds, Sheffield and the Humber ports.  Note also that there are currently no 
through train services between East Lancashire and Manchester Airport.

Several long-standing aspirations for improved strategic connectivity in the Central 
Pennines corridor by both road and rail currently exist and a number of schemes have 
been considered in the past; however, to date little has been forthcoming.  It is 
therefore not surprising there is a strong perception locally that the transport network 
hinders the efficient movement of people and goods, and that this poor connectivity is 
having a negative impact on economic development and regeneration.

The M65 represents the key economic corridor of East Lancashire, linking the towns 
of Blackburn, Accrington, Burnley, Nelson and Colne with the M6 and M61 motorways 
at Bamber Bridge near Preston.  It plays an essential role in the local economy, 
connecting people and businesses internally as well as providing the primary means 
of access to the M6, particularly for freight.  Almost all existing and future strategic 
employment site developments in East Lancashire are located in close proximity to 
the M65 and/or require effective access to and from it.

Unlike most motorways, the M65 is not three lanes throughout its length, with reduced 
capacity on some sections, particularly between the M61 (Junction 2) and Junction 6 
at Whitebirk east of Blackburn.  Evidence now suggests that the current level of 
demand at peak times is causing congestion, exacerbated by the limited capacity, 
traffic flow composition and the capacity and close proximity of some junctions.  The 
LEP would therefore wish to see improvements to this stretch of the M65 in Road 
Investment Strategy 2 to ensure that the motorway has sufficient capacity to 
accommodate future economic growth.

The M65 ends abruptly at Colne, the continuation across the Pennines into North 
Yorkshire and the Leeds City Region provided by the A6068 and A56 routes linking 
with the A629 at Cross Hills in Airedale and the A59 at Broughton west of Skipton 
respectively.  The LEP considers the introduction of the new National Road Fund from 
April 2020 and associated definition of a Major Road Network represents a genuine 
opportunity to address the east-west connectivity challenge in the Central Pennines 
and to resolve these outstanding issues.

The LEP acknowledges the commitment in the current Northern franchise to introduce 
brand new or refurbished diesel trains on the Blackpool North to York service via 
Preston, Blackburn, Burnley Manchester Road and Leeds as part of the wider 
'Northern Connect' network.  However, modernisation and electrification of the route 
would deliver transformational change to city region connectivity across the North and 
for East Lancashire in particular.  The North of England Electrification Task Force 

Page 11



report of March 2015 included the full 'Calder Valley' route, including to Burnley and 
Preston, as a Tier 1 scheme for implementation in Control Period 6 (2019 to 2024).  
The LEP also welcomes the recent announcement by the Secretary of State to fund a 
feasibility study of the potential to reinstate the railway between Colne and Skipton.

Also in East Lancashire, the importance of strategic transport links into Manchester 
from the Rossendale Valley needs to be recognised.  The M66 is Rossendale's key 
transport link with the rest of the country, as other road connections are severely 
constrained by topography and the borough has no station on the national rail network 
and is remote from it.  Very severe congestion now occurs on the M66 during peak 
periods and increasingly at other times.  This affects travel to and from Greater 
Manchester, particularly for commuters using the express bus services that Transdev 
operates into Manchester city centre from East Lancashire using purpose-built luxury 
coaches.  Aspirations remain for the reinstatement of a main line rail service between 
Rawtenstall and Manchester for commuters using existing heritage railway 
infrastructure.

Elsewhere on the rail network in this SDC geography, the most direct route between 
Liverpool and Preston requires a change of trains at Ormskirk.  The train service linking 
Preston with Ormskirk is hourly and operated by poor quality rolling stock, contrasting 
starkly with the fast and frequent service Merseyrail operates between Ormskirk and 
Liverpool using electric trains.  Through services between Preston and Liverpool travel 
via Wigan North Western with a journey time of approximately one hour.  Refurbished 
electric trains now operate these services, some of which extend to Liverpool South 
Parkway for access to/from Liverpool John Lennon Airport.  Also in West Lancashire, 
Skelmersdale is one of the largest towns in the country without a town centre railway 
station.  Lancashire County Council is currently working with partners including 
Network Rail and Merseytravel to develop a proposal for a new rail link and town centre 
railway station.  A new railway station could act as a direct stimulus in terms of 
employment and housing development, allowing residents of the town to benefit from 
its proximity to both Liverpool and Manchester city centres.

Connecting the Energy Coasts Strategic Development Corridor

The LEP expects connectivity issues in Lancashire to receive equal consideration to 
those elsewhere within this SDC geography given the quantum of energy related 
assets located in the county.  There are specific issues with regard to strategic access 
to and from the northern Fylde Coast, particularly by road.  The A585 trunk road, which 
links the Hillhouse International Business Park Enterprise Zone at Thornton with the 
M55, is one of the most congested routes in the North West.  Hillhouse is a prime 
location for industrial and commercial development, and is currently home to several 
multi-national companies engaged in the manufacture of advanced materials and 
polymers.  Whilst the LEP is supportive of the commitment in the Government's first 
Road Investment Strategy (RIS1) to deliver a new, off-line bypass of Little Singleton 
to reduce the impact of traffic on the local community and remove the bottleneck, the 
A585 needs to operate as effectively as possible along its entire length between the 
M55 and Fleetwood.

Further north, the LEP and the County Council are supporting the development and 
delivery of the Bailrigg Garden Village near Lancaster, one of the Government's 14 

Page 12



designated garden villages.  This requires the reconfiguration of M6 Junction 33, which 
will also unlock expansion plans at Lancaster University, one of the UK's top teaching 
and research institutes.

Despite the ongoing investment in the modernisation and electrification of the railway 
line between Preston and Blackpool, the wider rail network serving the Fylde Coast 
and Morecambe/Heysham will remain an underutilised asset without further 
investment in infrastructure and services.  There may be opportunities for integration 
with the Blackpool Tramway, for example, in the South Fylde and the Fleetwood area, 
complementing committed investment through the Lancashire Growth Deal that will 
deliver an extension of the tramway from the Promenade to Blackpool North station 
by mid 2019.  Seamless interchange between the rail network and tram system will be 
achieved for the first time to the benefit of both residents and visitors.

Further north, because of the fragmented rail network around Morecambe Bay and 
into the southern Lake District, there are limited options for through journeys.  Most 
require a change of train at Lancaster as there are no direct services between 
Morecambe and Barrow and interchange between Furness Line and Windermere Line 
services is not possible at Carnforth due to previous rationalisation of track and station 
infrastructure.  Addressing these limited connections could open up opportunities to 
access jobs around the Energy Coast 'West', particularly in the advanced 
manufacturing and nuclear sectors, and support tourism and leisure activity given the 
close proximity of Morecambe Bay and the Lake District and Yorkshire Dales National 
Parks.

Central Lancashire

Central Lancashire, with the city Preston at its heart, is a transport hub of national 
significance straddling the Central Pennines, Connecting the Energy Coasts and North 
West to Sheffield City Region Strategic Development Corridors.  It provides most of 
Lancashire's connections to the West Coast Main Line, the M6 and, in the future, to 
HS2.  The Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal agreed with the 
Government in September 2013 builds on the strong economic performance of the 
area and will create over 20,000 net new private sector jobs and deliver 17,000 new 
homes by 2025, increasing the size of the local economy by £1bn.  Lancashire’s 
growth sectors will account for many of these jobs, in particular, the Enterprise Zones 
at Samlesbury and Warton where EZ activity is forecast to create some 6,000 new 
jobs.  However, Preston’s business and financial sector will also expand, with the 
University of Central Lancashire (the country's fifth largest in terms of student 
numbers) reconfiguring to place itself at the heart of the city.

The M6 Preston Bypass is the busiest section of motorway in Lancashire and one of 
the busiest in the North West.  It is the critical link in the county's strategic highway 
network, catering for east-west travel between the Fylde Coast and East Lancashire 
in addition to travel in the nationally significant north-south corridor.  There is also 
significant interaction with the local highway network during morning and evening peak 
periods leading to congestion on the M6 and at a number of interfaces.  Even with full 
delivery of the four road schemes identified in the City Deal, evidence suggests that 
Preston Bypass will be under pressure by 2026, particularly during peak periods on 
the section between Junctions 30 and 32 with the M61 and M55 respectively.

Page 13



Many existing and future commercial and residential development opportunities in 
Central Lancashire lie close to the M6.  The LEP would welcome the opportunity to 
work in partnership with Highways England, Transport for the North and Lancashire 
County Council to investigate the wider resilience issues facing the SRN in Central 
Lancashire including potential benefits to the M6 from the establishment and future 
development of the Preston/South Ribble Western Distributor route.  This route, which 
will link the M55 at a new Junction 2 with the M6/M61/M65 motorways at Cuerden, is 
central to the City Deal, supporting delivery of a number of strategic housing locations 
together with the regionally significant Cuerden strategic site.  Cuerden, which lies 
close to the intersection of the M6, M61 and M65 motorways, has the potential to 
create over 4,500 new jobs locally.

City deal partners aspire to deliver a new crossing of the River Ribble that would 
connect the South Ribble Western distributor with the Preston Western Distributor, 
providing a continuous dual carriageway for distributing regional and local traffic 
movements across a wide area including Central and West Lancashire and the Fylde 
Coast.  This would reduce pressure on the M6 between Junctions 29 and 32 and 
provide much needed network resilience.  Whilst delivery of the City Deal is not 
predicated on a new crossing, such a scheme has the potential to support significant 
further economic growth and development in Central Lancashire and its environs 
beyond the current Local Plan period to 2026.  Furthermore, early indications using 
the traffic model developed as part of the Preston Western Distributor Business Case 
preparation suggest it will have a significant positive impact on the Strategic Road 
Network to the west and north of Preston (the M6 and M55).

Preston station lies approximately mid-way between Glasgow and London on the West 
Coast Main Line and as referenced earlier, with an estimated 5 million passenger trips 
annually and a further 1.49 million interchanges, is one of the busiest stations in the 
North of England and the busiest in the North West outside of Manchester and 
Liverpool city centres.  In addition to West Coast Main Line services to London, 
Birmingham, Glasgow and Edinburgh, there are also regular direct trains to 
Manchester city centre, Manchester Airport and Liverpool, and to Leeds in the 
increasingly important east-west corridor linking Lancashire with North and West 
Yorkshire.  The station provides connections into these services from Blackpool, 
Blackburn and East Lancashire, Lancaster and the Lake District.  It is therefore a 
critical asset for the city and for Lancashire as a whole, serving as a gateway for an 
extensive catchment of communities further afield, particularly for connectivity with the 
West Coast Main Line.

Whilst Preston station has retained its original Victorian fabric, it has received 
limited/piecemeal investment over several decades, resulting in a poor passenger 
experience and preventing the station from contributing towards the wider commercial 
development of the city centre.  The station building lacks presence, resulting in poor 
first impressions of the city for visitors and poor customer satisfaction.  A number of 
key issues need addressing, both from a rail operating perspective, particularly once 
HS2 services begin operating in 2026, and from a passenger perspective in terms of 
access, circulation and safety.  With ongoing upgrades to key routes linking Preston 
with Manchester, Liverpool and Blackpool and the impending introduction of new 

Page 14



rolling stock on a number of key services, for passengers, the contrast between the 
station and on-board experience will quickly become even starker.

Freight

The committee may wish to welcome the strong emphasis given to freight transport in 
the draft STP but request that further attention be given to the so-called 'last mile' of 
freight movements.  Whilst acknowledging such access is an economic necessity, the 
STP should take a lead on developing a pan-northern framework for concepts such 
as freight consolidation centres.  These could help to reduce/eliminate the challenges 
associated with large vehicles in urban areas, particularly in city and town centres 
where there is an increasing desire to 'place-shape' the built environment in favour of 
people.

Page 15



Page 16


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2018
	5 Transport for the North Draft Strategic Transport Plan Public Consultation

